# BYLAWS OF MOOSE LAKE AND WINDEMERE AREA SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE		1
ARTICLE I -	GENERAL	1
1.1	NAME AND STATUS	
	a. Name	1
	b. Status	
1.2	MAILING ADDRESS	1
1.3	OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER	1
1.4	OFFICIAL SEAL	
ARTICLE II	- SANITARY SEWER BOARD	2
2.1	NUMBER, QUALIFICATIONS AND REPRESENTATION	
	a. Number and Qualifications	
	b. Representation	
2.2	SELECTIONS	
2.3	SELECTIONS.	
	a. Conduct of Selections	
	b. Timing of Selections	
2.4	NOTICES; CERTIFICATES OF ELECTION; OATHS OF OFFICE	
	a. Certification of Results of Election	2
	b. Oaths of Office.	
2.5	TERM OF OFFICE	
2.6	VACANCIES	
	a. Declaration of Vacancies	
	b. Vacancies Must be Filled	
ARTICLE III	I - MEETINGS OF THE BOARD	
3.1	MEETINGS MUST BE OPEN	
3.2	ANNUAL MEETING	
3.3	REGULAR MEETINGS	
3.4	BOARD ACTIONS	
3.5	SPECIAL MEETINGS	4
	a. How Called	
	b. Notice to Board Members	4
	c. Notice to Public	
3.6	EMERGENCY MEETINGS	4
	a. Notice to News Media	4
	b. Manner of Notice	4
	c. Content of Notice	
	d. Posted or Published Notice not Required	5
3.7	COMPENSATION	5

ARTICLE I	ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS5				
4.1	OFFICERS	. 5			
	a. Officers	. 5			
	b. When Elected	. 5			
	c. Term	. 5			
	d. Offices may be Combined				
	e. Powers and Duties				
4.2	CHAIR				
	a. Presiding Officer				
	b. Recommendations				
4.3	VICE-CHAIR				
4.4	TREASURER				
	a. Custody of District Funds				
	b. Record Keeping and Reporting				
4.5	SECRETARY				
7.5	a. Record Keeping				
	b. Notices				
	U. 190ddccs	. U			
ARTICLEV	- POWERS OF THE BOARD	6			
5.1	GENERAL				
5.1	a. Exercised by Board				
	b Powers Pursuant to Enabling Legislation				
5.2	BOARD ACTIONS				
3.2	BOARD ACTIONS	. u			
ARTICLEV	'I - DISTRICT EMPLOYEES	7			
6.1	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR				
6.2	PUBLIC EMPLOYEES				
0.2					
ARTICLE V	'II - CONFLICTS OF INTEREST; INCOMPATIBLE OFFICES; GIFTS	. 7			
7.1	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS				
7.2	PROHIBITED CONFLICTS				
	a. Incompatible Offices				
	b. Receipt of Gifts				
	01 14442pv 01 0220				
ARTICLE V	II - SURETY BONDS AND INSURANCE	. 8			
8.1	BOND REQUIREMENTS				
8.2	INSURANCE.				
		, -			
ARTICLE I	X - FINANCIAL MATTERS	. 8			
9.1.	GENERAL	. 8			
9.2.	DISBURSEMENTS				
	a. Authorization and Payment				
	b. Violations				
	c. Claims				
	d. Orders and Checks				
	e. Additional Requirements				
9.3.	BUDGET				

		a. Preparation and Adoption	. 9
		b. Public Meeting Optional	10
	9.4	ALLOCATION OF COST.	
	9.5	DEPOSIT OF FUNDS REQUIRED	10
	9.6	DEPOSITORIES AND INVESTMENTS	
	9.7	FISCAL YEAR	
	9.8	ACCOUNTING METHODS	10
	9.9	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	10
	9.10	AUDIT	
ARTIC	ΊΕΧ-	COMMITTEES	11
211(11(	10.1	COMMITTEES APPOINTED	11
	10.1	DUTIES OF COMMITTEES	
	10.2	COMMITTEE REPORTS	
	10.5	COMMITTEE REPORTS	11
ARTIC	LE XI	- EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS	11
ARTIC	LE XII	- COMPREHENSIVE PLAN	11
	12.1	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN.	
	12.2	CONTENTS	11
	12.3	CONSULTATION	
	12.4	SUBSEQUENT PLANS	
	12.5	REVISIONS	
	12.6	COMPREHENSIVE PLANS; HEARING	
	12.7	GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PLANS AND PROGRAMS; COORDINATION	12
		BOARD'S RESPONSIBILIITES	12
A D'TIC	יו ב עוו	I - TAX LEVIES AND ASSESSMENTS	11
AKIIC	13.1	TAXES	
	13.1	SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.	
	13.2	SPECIAL ASSESSIVENTS.	12
ARTIC	LE XI	V - BORROWING POWERS; BONDS	13
	14.1	BORROWING	13
	14.2	BONDS	13
ARTIC	LE XV	- DISTRICT ORDINANCES	13
	15.1	EFFECT	
	15.2	ADOPTION OF ORDINANCES	
	10.2	a. Introduction.	
		b. Passage	
		c. Designation.	1:
		d. Posting and Publication	
		e. Publication of Summary Ordinance	
		f. Filing of Ordinance	
ARTIC	T.F. XV	I - AMENDMENT AND REVOCATION	14

## BYLAWS OF

#### MOOSE LAKE AND WINDEMERE AREA SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT

#### **PREAMBLE**

These Bylaws are enacted, approved and adopted by the Sanitary Sewer Board (the "Board") of the Moose Lake and Windemere Area Sanitary Sewer District (the "District") which was created pursuant to Laws of Minnesota for 1974 Chapter 400—S.F. No. 3240, as amended by Laws of Minnesota for 1976, Chapter 293 – H.F. No. 2534, Sections 2 through 7; Laws of Minnesota for 1980, Chapter 507 – H.F. No. 2185, Sections 4 through 8; Laws of Minnesota for 1982, Chapter 514 – S.F. No. 536, Sections5 and 6; and Laws of Minnesota for 1987, Chapter 402 – H.F. No. 735, Section 3; and Laws of Minnesota for 1999, Chapter 145 – S.F. No. 376, Section 2 (the "Act"), attached as Exhibit A. It is the intent and desire of the Board that the Act be referenced to determine the basic purposes of the Board and the District. These Bylaws are adopted for the purpose of outlining the operational procedures to be followed by the Board, its officers and employees in carrying out the purposes set forth in the Act. If at any time a conflict should arise between the provisions of these Bylaws and the provisions and directives of the Act, the provisions and directives of the Act will in all cases be controlling.

#### ARTICLE I - GENERAL

- 1.1 NAME AND STATUS.
- a. Name. The District is known as the Moose Lake and Windemere Area Sanitary Sewer District and is referred to in these Bylaws as the "District".
- b. Status. Pursuant to Section 4, subdivision 1 of the Act, the District is a public corporation and a governmental subdivision of the State of Minnesota.
- 1.2 MAILING ADDRESS. The mailing address of the District is and will be located at:

Moose Lake and Windemere Area Sanitary Sewer District

Attn: Executive Director 304 ½ Elm Anvenue Moose Lake, MN 55767

Other addresses for the transaction of business may be located at such places as the Board may from time to time determine.

- 1.3 OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER. The official newspaper of the District is the Arrowhead Leader.
  - 1.4 OFFICIAL SEAL. The Board has not adopted an official seal.

#### ARTICLE II - SANITARY SEWER BOARD

## 2.1 NUMBER, QUALIFICATIONS AND REPRESENTATION.

- a. Number and Qualifications. Pursuant to Section 4 of the Act, the governing body of the District is a five member Sanitary Sewer Board (the "Board"). Each member of the Board must be a resident of the district and may, but need not be, an elected public official.
- b. Representation. Pursuant to Section 4, subdivision 2 of the Act, the Board shall be composed of two members appointed by the Moose Lake town board, two members appointed by the Windemere town board, two members appointed by the governing body of each municipality subsequently annexed to the district, and one member who shall reside in Moose Lake or Windemere, appointed by a joint meeting of the town boards and other governing bodies of the municipalities in the district. Each member shall have one vote on matters coming before the Board.
- 2.2 SELECTIONS. The governing bodies of the Town of Moose Lake, the Town of Windemere and any municipality subsequently annexed to the District (collectively "Governing Bodies" or individually "Governing Body) may identify and select proposed Board members by resolution.

#### 2.3 SELECTIONS.

- a. Conduct of Selections. Members of the Board will be selected as follows:
- i. The Moose Lake town board and Windemere town board shall each appoint two members. The Governing Body for each municipality subsequently annexed to the district shall appoint two members. Upon completion of the election, the town clerk of the electing Governing Body must certify the results and furnish Certificates of Selection according to the procedure set forth in Section 2.5 below.
- ii. The Governing Bodies of all municipalities in the District shall appoint one member who is a resident of Moose Lake or Windemere by joint meeting of the Governing Bodies of each municipality in the District. Upon completion of the election, the town clerk of the electing Governing Body must certify the results and furnish a Certificate of Selection and oath of office according to the procedure set forth in Section 2.5 below.
- b. Timing of Selections. The successor to each Board member shall be selected at any time within 60 days before the expiration of his term in the same manner as his or her predecessor was selected.

## 2.4 NOTICES; CERTIFICATES OF ELECTION; OATHS OF OFFICE.

a. Certification of Results of Election. Pursuant to Section 4, subdivision 8 of the Act, a Certificate of Selection for each Board member selected shall be made by the respective

town clerks and provided to the Board Secretary and elected Board member. The Certificates, if required, shall be certified to the Minnesota Secretary of State.

- b. Oaths of Office. Each Board member must take and subscribe the oath defined in the Constitution of the State of Minnesota, Article V, Section 6.
- 2.5 TERM OF OFFICE. Pursuant to Section 4, subdivision 5 of the Act, Board members will be elected successively for regular terms of one, two, three or four years to be determined by the Governing Bodies of the municipalities appointing the member, beginning on the expiration of the preceding term and expiring at the end of the member's term as determined by the nominating Governing Bodies. Each Board member serves until a successor is elected and has qualified pursuant to the Act.

#### 2.6 VACANCIES.

- a. Declaration of Vacancies. Pursuant to Section 4, subdivision 4 of the Act, vacancies must be deemed vacant under the conditions specified in Minnesota Statutes, Section 351.02.
- b. Vacancies Must be Filled. Any vacancy in the membership of the Board must be filled within 60 days after it occurs and must be filled for the unexpired term in like manner as provided for selection of the member who vacated the office.

#### ARTICLE III - MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

- 3.1 MEETINGS MUST BE OPEN. Except as provided in Minnesota Statutes, Section 13D.04, all meetings of the Board must be open to the public. The Board must keep minutes of its proceedings as a public record.
- 3.2 ANNUAL MEETING. The Board must hold an annual meeting on or as soon as practicable after the first business day in January of each year, to elect the officers to serve until the first business day in January of the following year. Each officer serves until a successor is elected and has qualified.
- 3.3 REGULAR MEETINGS. The regular meetings of the Board will be held at the date, time and location established by the Board by resolution. Notice of any change in meeting date, time or location must be given in accordance with the requirements for special meetings, Section 3.5 below.
- 3.4 BOARD ACTIONS. A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Board. Except as otherwise provided in the Act, any Board action may be taken by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board.

#### 3.5 SPECIAL MEETINGS.

- a. How Called. Special meetings may be held at any time subject to the call of the Chair or of any two Board members.
- b. Notice to Board Members. Special meetings are called by written notice, sent by regular mail or electronic transmission, to each member of the Board at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting, or upon such other notice as the Board may by resolution provide.<sup>1</sup>
- c. Notice to Public. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 13D.04, the following notices must be given for a special meeting:
  - i. The Board must post written notice of the date, time, place, and purpose of the meeting in a manner likely to attract attention, in each of three of the most public places in the District.
  - ii. The notice must also be mailed or otherwise delivered to each person who has filed a written request for notice of special meetings with the Board. This notice must be posted and mailed or delivered at least three business days before the date of the meeting.
  - iii. As an alternative to mailing or otherwise delivering notice to persons who have filed a written request for notice of special meetings, the Board may publish the notice once, at least three days before the meeting, in the official newspaper of the District.
- 3.6 EMERGENCY MEETINGS. An "emergency" meeting is a special meeting of the Board called because of circumstances that, in the judgment of the Board, require immediate consideration by the Board. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 13D.04, the following notices must be given for an emergency meeting:
- a. Notice to News Media. The Board must make good faith efforts to provide notice of the meeting to each news medium that has filed a written request for notice (if the request includes the news medium's telephone number) as soon as reasonably practicable after notice has been given to the Board members.
- b. Manner of Notice. Notice of the emergency meeting may be given by telephone or by any other method used to notify the members of the Board.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> "Business days" as used herein means Monday through Saturday, inclusive, but does not include the following holidays: New Years Day, January 1; Washington and Lincoln's birthdays, the 3rd Monday in February; Martin Luther King's birthday, the third Monday in January; Memorial Day, the last Monday in May; Independence Day, July 4; Labor Day, the first Monday in September; Columbus Day, the second Monday in October; Veteran's Day, the fourth Monday in October; Thanksgiving Day, the fourth Thursday in November; and Christmas Day, December 25; provided, when New Years Day, January 1; or Independence Day, July 4; or Christmas Day, December 25; falls on Sunday, the following days are holidays, and, provided, when New Years Day, January 1; or Independence Day, July 4; or Christmas Day, December 25; falls on Saturday, the preceding day is a holiday.

- c. Content of Notice. The notice must include the subject of the meeting. If matters not directly related to the emergency are discussed or acted upon at an emergency meeting, the minutes of the meeting must include a specific description of the matters.
- d. Posted or Published Notice not Required. Posted or published notice of an emergency meeting is not be required, but may be given.
- 3.7 COMPENSATION. Pursuant to Section 4, subdivision 9 of the Act, each Board member, except the Chair, shall be paid a per diem compensation of \$50 for meetings, not to exceed \$1,000 in any one year. The Chair shall be paid a per diem compensation of \$50 for meetings, not to exceed \$1,500 in any one year. In addition the Chair and other Board members shall be compensated at the rate of \$50 per day for other services as are specifically authorized by the Board, without regard to the above annual limitations. All members of the Board shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as determined by the Board.

#### ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

#### 4.1 OFFICERS.

- a. Officers. Pursuant to Section 5, subdivisions 2 and 3 of the Act, the officers of the District are a Chair and Vice-Chair, who must be members of the Board, and a Secretary and a Treasurer, who may, but need not be members of the Board. The Secretary and Treasurer shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board, subject to the terms of any contract of employment which the Board may enter into with the Secretary or Treasurer. No Secretary or Treasurer who is not a member of the Board or a deputy of either shall have any right to vote.
- b. When Elected. The Board will elect officers at the annual meeting to serve until the first business day in January of the following year. Each officer serves until a successor is elected and has qualified.
  - c. Term. Each officer serves until a successor is elected and has qualified.
- d. Offices may be Combined. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be combined.
- e. Powers and Duties. Except as otherwise provided, the Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer of the District have the powers granted to it under Section 5 of the Act.

## 4.2 CHAIR.

- a. Presiding Officer. The Chair presides at all meetings of the Board, except as otherwise authorized by resolution of the Board.
- b. Recommendations. At each meeting, the Chair may submit recommendations and information concerning the business, affairs and policies of the Board.

4.3 VICE-CHAIR. The Vice-Chair performs the duties of the Chair in the absence or incapacity of the Chair, and in the case of the resignation or death of the Chair, the Vice Chair performs the Chair's duties until such time as a new Chair is elected or appointed.

## 4.4 TREASURER.

- a. Custody of District Funds. The Treasurer has the care and custody of all funds of the District except such as the Board shall entrust to the custody of a designated employee. The Secretary must deposit same in the name of the District in such depository as the Board may direct, subject to the requirements of these Bylaws.
- b. Record Keeping and Reporting. The Treasurer keeps regular books of accounts showing all receipts and disbursements and renders to the Board an account of the transactions and the current financial standing of the Board in the forms and at the times required by Article VIII of these Bylaws.

#### 4.5 SECRETARY.

- a. Record Keeping. The Secretary keeps the records of the Board, acts as secretary of the meetings of the Board, records all votes, keeps a record of the proceedings to be kept for such purpose, and performs duties incident to the office, except such as the Board shall entrust to the custody of a designated employee.
- b. Notices. The Secretary must notify the Minnesota Secretary of State and the clerk of each of the Governing Bodies of the locations and post office addresses of the meeting place and offices of the District and any changes therein.

#### ARTICLE V - POWERS OF THE BOARD

## 5.1 GENERAL.

- a. Exercised by Board. Pursuant to Section 6, subdivision 1 of the Act, the Board shall have all powers which may be necessary or convenient to discharge the duties imposed upon it by law.
- b Powers Pursuant to Enabling Legislation. Pursuant to Section 6 of the Act, the Board has all those powers granted pursuant to the Act, but the express grant or enumeration of powers shall not be deemed to limit the generality or scope of the grant of power contained in the Act.
- 5.2 BOARD ACTIONS. Pursuant to Section 6 of the Act, the Board may enact rules and regulations, and take other appropriate action relating to any matter within the powers and purposes of the District, and may do and perform all other acts and things necessary or proper for the effectuation of said powers and the accomplishment of said purposes.

#### ARTICLE VI - DISTRICT EMPLOYEES

- 6.1 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. The Board may appoint an Executive Director who shall be selected solely upon the basis of training, experience and other qualifications and who shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and at a compensation to be determined by the Board. The Executive Director need not be a resident of the District. The Executive Director may also be selected by the Board to serve as either Secretary or Treasurer, or both, of the Board. The Executive Director shall attend all meetings of the Board, but shall not vote, and shall exercise the following powers and duties:
  - a. Ensure that all resolutions, rules, regulations, or orders of the Board are enforced.
- b. Appoint and remove, upon the basis of merit and fitness, all subordinate officers and regular employees of the Board except the secretary and the treasurer and their deputies.
- c. Present to the Board plans, studies and other reports prepared for Board purposes and recommend to the Board for adoption such measures as he deems necessary to enforce or carry out the powers and duties of the Board, or the efficient administration of the affairs of the Board.
- d. Keep the Board fully advised as to its financial condition, and he shall prepare and submit to the Board, and to the governing bodies of the local government units, the Board's annual budget and other financial information as the Board may request.
- e. Recommend to the Board for adoption such rules and regulations as he deems necessary for the efficient operation of the District disposal system.
  - f. Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.
- 6.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES. The Executive Director and all persons he or she employs shall be public employees, and shall have all the rights and duties conferred on public employees under Minnesota Statutes, Sections 179.61 to 179.76. The Board may elect to have employees become members of either the public employees' retirement association or the Minnesota state retirement system. The compensation and conditions of employment of the employees shall not be governed by any rule applicable to state employees in the classified service nor to any of the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 15A, unless the Board so provides.

## ARTICLE VII - CONFLICTS OF INTEREST; INCOMPATIBLE OFFICES; GIFTS

7.1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS. Board members are public officers and are subject to applicable conflict of interest laws. Minnesota Statute §471.87 provides that a conflict of interest exists when a public officer who is authorized to participate in the making of a sale, lease or contract in his or her official capacity, voluntarily has a personal financial interest in that sale, lease or contract, or will benefit financially therefrom. Minnesota Statutes §471.88 lists a number of exceptions to this general rule.

- 7.2 PROHIBITED CONFLICTS. The Board is subject to the general rule and applicable exceptions. If one of the exceptions is applicable, the Board must approve the contract by unanimous vote and any interested member must abstain from voting. The following conflict situations are specifically prohibited by Minnesota law:
- a. Incompatible Offices. Minnesota law prohibits all persons in elected offices from taking a position on a board or an office that is incompatible with another board or office position. Board members may not take a position on a board or an office that is incompatible with their role as a Board member.
- b. Receipt of Gifts. Minnesota Statute §471.895, subdivision 2 prohibits Board members from receiving a gift from any interested person. An "interested person" means a person, representative or association that has a direct financial interest in a decision that a local official is authorized to make or participate in making. Board members must not accept gifts from any interested persons.

#### ARTICLE VIII - SURETY BONDS AND INSURANCE

- 8.1 BOND REQUIREMENTS. The Board may procure surety bonds for its officers and employees and in amounts as are deemed necessary to assure proper performance of their duties and proper accounting for funds in their custody.
- 8.2 INSURANCE. The Board may procure insurance against risks to property and liability of the Board and its officers, agents, and employees for personal injuries or death and property damage and destruction and in amounts as may be deemed necessary or desirable, with the force and effect stated in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 466.

## **ARTICLE IX - FINANCIAL MATTERS**

9.1. GENERAL. The Board has complete authority over all financial affairs of the District and is responsible for determining all expenses of the District, auditing and settlement of accounts, and in the collection, safekeeping and disbursements of all public monies coming into its possession.

#### 9.2. DISBURSEMENTS.

- a. Authorization and Payment.
- i. All disbursements over \$1,000.00 must be duly authorized by the Board; provided that in the case of an emergency, the Executive Director or Superintendent may request authorization for payment from the Board Chair without prior approval by the Board for amounts not to exceed \$5,000.00. Board authorization must indicate the account out of which the disbursement is to be made.

- ii. No checks may be issued until there is an amount of money to the credit of the fund out of which the voucher is to be paid which is sufficient to pay the voucher and all then outstanding vouchers against and encumbrances upon such fund.
- b. Violations. Any check for the payment of money violating any provision of this Section will be void and any officer of the Board violating any provision of this Section will be personally responsible for the amount of any payment is made contrary to the provisions hereof.
- c. Claims. All claims against the District must be accompanied by an itemized, verified statement, payroll, or time sheet, signed by the officer who has personal knowledge of the facts of the claim and vouches for the correctness and the reasonableness of the claim.
- d. Orders and Checks. Except as may otherwise be provided in these Bylaws, the Treasurer and one other officer of the District must sign all orders and checks for the payment of funds and pay out and disburse the District's funds under the direction of the Board.
- e. Additional Requirements. The Board, by resolution may make further regulations for the safekeeping and disbursement of District funds.

#### 9.3. BUDGET.

- a. Preparation and Adoption. For each fiscal year, the Board shall prepare and adopt a budget showing estimated receipts of money from all sources, including but not limited to payments by each local government unit, federal or state grants, taxes on property, and funds on hand at the beginning of the year, and estimated expenditures as provided in Section 9 of the Act, for:
  - (1) costs of operation, administration and maintenance of the district disposal system;
  - (2) cost of acquisition and betterment of the district disposal system; and
- (3) debt service, including principal and interest, on general obligation bonds and certificates, and any money judgments entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. Expenditures within these general categories, and any other categories as the Board may from time to time determine, shall be itemized in detail as the Board shall prescribe. The Board and its officers, agents and employees shall not spend money for any purpose other than debt service without having set forth the expense in the budget nor in excess of the amount set forth in the budget therefor, and no obligation to make an expenditure of the abovementioned type shall be enforceable except as the obligation of the person or persons incurring it; provided that the Board may amend the budget at any time by transferring from one purpose to another any sums except money for debt service and bond proceeds or by increasing expenditures in any amount by which cash receipts during the budget year actually exceed the total amounts designated in the original budget. The creation of obligation pursuant to Article XIV or the receipt of any federal or state grant is a sufficient budget designation of the proceeds for the purpose for which it is authorized, and of the tax or other revenue pledged to pay the obligation and interest on it, whether or not specifically included in any annual budget.

b. Public Meeting Optional. All interested residents of the District must have a reasonable opportunity to be heard at any meeting at which the budget is considered. Prior to the adoption of the budget, the Board may hold a public meeting at which time interested residents of the District may be heard. The meeting may be held in conjunction with a regular or special meeting of the Board.

#### 9.4 ALLOCATION OF COST.

- a. Definition Of Current Costs. Current Costs are the estimated cost of administration, operation, maintenance and debt service of the District disposal system to be paid by the Board in each fiscal year, and the estimated costs of acquisition and betterment of the system which are to be paid during the year from funds other than state or federal grants and bond proceeds and all other previously unallocated payments made by the Board to be allocated in the fiscal year. Current Costs shall be allocated by the Board as hereinafter provided in the budget for such year.
- b. Method Of Allocation Of Current Costs. All Current Costs shall be allocated in the District on an equitable basis as the Board may from time to time determine by resolution to be in the best interests of the District. The adoption or revision of any method of allocation used by the Board shall be by the affirmative vote of at least two thirds the members of the Board.
- 9.5 DEPOSIT OF FUNDS REQUIRED. Pursuant to Section 15, subdivision 1 of the Act, all money received by the Board shall be deposited or invested by the Treasurer and disposed of as the Board may direct in accordance with its budget; provided that any moneys that have been pledged or dedicated by the Board to the payment of obligations or interest thereon or expenses incident thereto, or for any other specific purpose authorized by law, shall be paid by the Treasurer into the fund to which they have been pledged.
- 9.6 DEPOSITORIES AND INVESTMENTS. Pursuant to Section 15, subdivision 3 of the Act, the money on hand in District funds and accounts may be deposited in the official depositories of the Board or invested as hereinafter provided. The amount thereof not currently needed or required by law to be kept in cash on deposit may be invested in obligations authorized for the investment of municipal sinking funds by Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.66. Such money may also be held under certificates of deposit issued by any official depository of the Board.
  - 9.7 FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year of the District is the same as the calendar year.
- 9.8 ACCOUNTING METHODS. The Board may prescribe and enforce such accounting methods, forms, blanks, and other devices as are consistent with the law and the standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
- 9.9 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. The Treasurer must submit to the Board a statement each month showing the amount of money in the Board Treasury, the status of the District funds, the amount expended or chargeable against each of the annual budget allowances

and the balance left in each fund and such other information relative to the finances of the District as the Board may require.

9.10 AUDIT. The books of the Board must be audited regularly at least once each year by either (i) the State Auditor or (ii) a public accountant authorized to perform such a function under Minnesota Statutes, Section 214.33.

#### **ARTICLE X - COMMITTEES**

- 10.1 COMMITTEES APPOINTED. Standing or temporary committees may be appointed by the Board from time to time from its own number.
- 10.2 DUTIES OF COMMITTEES. The Board may invest the committees with the powers it deems necessary and may subject the committees to conditions prescribed by the Board.
- 10.3 COMMITTEE REPORTS. All committees must report to the Board at the time or times the Board designates. If the Board does not designate a time to report, all committees appointed must report to the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board following the committee's appointment.

#### **ARTICLE XI - EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS**

Unless otherwise provided in law, these Bylaws, or a resolution of the Board, all contracts, bonds, certificates of indebtedness and all instruments of every kind to which the Board is a party, must be executed in the name of the Board by the Chair and countersigned by the Secretary.

## ARTICLE XII - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

- 12.1 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. Pursuant to Section 7 of the Act, the Board shall adopt a comprehensive plan for the collection, treatment and disposal of sewage in the District for a designated period the Board deems proper and reasonable.
- 12.2 CONTENTS. The first plan, as modified by the Board, and any subsequent plan shall take into account the following: (a) Preservation and best and most economic use of water and other natural resources in the area; (b) The preservation, use and potential for use of lands adjoining waters of the state to be used for the disposal of sewage; and (c) The impact such a disposal system will have on present and future land use in the area affected thereby.

The plans shall include the general location of needed interceptors and treatment works, a description of the area that is to be served by the various interceptors and treatment works, a long range capital improvements program and any other details as the Board shall deem appropriate.

12.3 CONSULTATION. In developing the plans, the Board shall consult with persons designated for the purpose by Governing Bodies of any government unit within the District to

represent the entities and shall consider the data, resources and input offered to the Board by the entities and any planning agency acting on behalf of one or more of the entities.

- 12.4 SUBSEQUENT PLANS. The Board shall prepare and adopt subsequent comprehensive plans for the collection, treatment and disposal of sewage in the District for each succeeding designated period as the Board deems proper and reasonable.
- 12.5 REVISIONS. Each plan, when adopted, shall be followed in the District and may be revised as often as the Board deems necessary.
- 12.6 COMPREHENSIVE PLANS; HEARING. Before adopting any subsequent comprehensive plan the Board shall hold a public hearing on the proposed plan at such time and place in the District as it shall determine. The hearing may be continued from time to time. Not less than 45 days before the hearing, the Board shall publish notice thereof in a newspaper or newspapers having general circulation in the District, stating the date, time and place of the hearing, and the place where the proposed plan may be examined by any interested person. At the hearing, all interested persons shall be permitted to present their views on the plan.
- 12.7 GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PLANS AND PROGRAMS; COORDINATION WITH BOARD'S RESPONSIBILIITES. Once the Board's plan is adopted, no construction project involving the construction of new sewers or other disposal facilities shall be undertaken by the local government unit unless its governing body shall first find the project to be in accordance with the government unit's comprehensive plan and program as approved by the Board. Prior to approval by the Board of the comprehensive plan and program of any local government unit in the District, no sanitary sewer construction project shall be undertaken by the government unit unless approval of the project is first secured from the Board as to those features of the project affecting the Board's responsibilities as determined by the Board.

#### ARTICLE XIII - TAX LEVIES AND ASSESSMENTS

- 13.1 TAXES. To accomplish any duty imposed on it the Board may, in addition to the powers granted in the Act and in any other law or charter, exercise the powers granted any municipality by Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 117, 412, 429, 475, Sections 115.46, 444.075 and 471.59 with respect to the area in the District. In addition, the Board may levy taxes upon all taxable property in the District to pay all or part of any Current Costs. The tax may be assessed and extended by the County Auditors for the next calendar year, free from any limitation of rate or amount imposed by law or charter. The tax shall be collected and remitted in the same manner as other general taxes. The proposed tax levy must be certified to each of the County Auditors by September 15 for the next calendar year.
- 13.2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. The Board may specially assess all or any part of the costs of acquisition and betterment of any project. The special assessments shall be levied in accordance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 429.051 to 429.081; except as otherwise provided in Section 12 of the Act. No other provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429 shall apply.

## ARTICLE XIV - BORROWING POWERS; BONDS

- 14.1 BORROWING. Pursuant to Section 6, subdivision 5 of the Act, the Board may authorize, accept or apply for any loan, gift, or grant for any District purpose.
- 14.2 BONDS. Pursuant to Section 13 of the Act, the Board may authorize the issuance of bonds or obligations of the District to provide funds for the construction, improvement, or acquisition of any system, works, or facilities for any District purpose, or for refunding any prior bonds or obligations issued for any such purpose, and may pledge the full faith and credit of the District or the proceeds of tax levies or assessments or service, use, or rental charges, or any combination thereof, to the payment of such bonds or obligations and interest thereon or expenses incident thereto.

#### ARTICLE XV - DISTRICT ORDINANCES

- 15.1 EFFECT. The Act, as consistent with Minnesota Statutes, Section 115.36, generally provides that an ordinance adopted by the Board, to the extent of its application, supersedes an ordinance of a related governmental subdivision if the ordinances address the same subject matter.
- 15.2 ADOPTION OF ORDINANCES. Ordinances of the District are adopted as follows:
- a. Introduction. All proposed ordinances must be introduced at regular meetings of the Board. No proposed ordinance may be introduced at a special or emergency meeting of the Board. Every proposed ordinance must be in writing. A proposed ordinance must contain only one subject which must be clearly expressed in the title thereof.
- b. Passage. Every ordinance must be passed by a majority vote of the Board, taken by yeas and nays. It must then be signed by the Chair and attested by the Secretary.
- c. Designation. The style of all ordinances must be 'The Sanitary Sewer Board of the Moose Lake and Windemere Area Sanitary Sewer District ordains as follows:"
- d. Posting and Publication. Every ordinance must be either posted on the District's web site on the Internet or published once in the official newspaper of the District unless, in the case of publication only, the Board decides by a four-fifths vote that publishing its title and a summary of it clearly tells the public of its intent and effect. The text of the ordinance, if published, must be in body type no smaller than brevier or 8 point type.
- e. Publication of Summary Ordinance. In the event the Board determines to publish a summary of an ordinance, the Board must approve the words in the summary. A notice must be published with the summary stating the location or locations and times that a printed copy of the whole ordinance is available for inspection by any person. The publishing of the title and summary is legally the same as publishing the whole ordinance.

f. Filing of Ordinance. Amendments or restatements of Ordinances currently on file in the offices of the County Auditors shall also be filed in the offices of the County Auditors.

## ARTICLE XVI - AMENDMENT AND REVOCATION

These Bylaws may be amended or revoked by resolution approved by four-fifths (4/5) of the members of the Board. These Bylaws will be deemed amended upon amendment by the legislature of the Act.

These Bylaws were originally adopted on						
ATTEST:	Chair					
Secretary	,					

#### EXHIBIT A

## LAWS OF MINNESOTA FOR 1974 CHAPTER 400—S.F. No. 3240

[Not Coded] as amended by:

LAWS OF MINNESOTA FOR 1976, CHAPTER 293 – H.F. No. 2534, Sections 2 through 7; LAWS OF MINNESTOA FOR 1980, CHAPTER 507 – H.F. No. 2185, Sections 4 through 8; LAWS OF MINNESOTA FOR 1982, CHAPTER 514 – S.F. No. 536, Sections5 and 6; and LAWS OF MINNESOTA FOR 1987, CHAPTER 402 – H.F. No. 735, Section 3; and LAWS OF MINNESOTA FOR 1999, CHAPTER 145 – S.F. No. 376, Section 2

An act relating to local government in Chisago and Pine county and the towns of Moose Lake in Carlton county and Windemere in Pine county; authorizing the county boards of Chisago and Pine counties to issue obligations and levy special assessments for improvements to bodies of water; authorizing the county board of Chisago county to establish water or sewer or combined water and sewer systems within cities; providing for the creation of a sewer district and a sanitary sewer board to administer the district; providing for the collection, treatment, and disposal of sewage in the Moose Lake and Windemere area.

## BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. CHISAGO AND PINE COUNTIES; MOOSE LAKE AND WINDEMERE, TOWNS OF; WATER AND SEWAGE SYSTEMS. The county boards of Chisago county and Pine county, in order to implement the powers granted under Minnesota Statutes, 1973 Supplement, Section 378.31, may issue obligations and levy special assessments against property within the limits of their respective counties benefitted by facilities constructed pursuant to that section in the manner provided by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429.

Sec. 2. In Chisago county, the authority of the county board to establish water or sewer or combined water and sewer systems pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 1973 Supplement, Section 444.075, shall extend to areas of the county organized into cities when requested by resolution of the governing body of the affected city or when ordered by the Minnesota pollution control agency after notice and hearing. For the purpose of any petition filed or special assessment levied with respect to any system, the entire area to be served within any city shall be treated as if it were owned by a single person, and the governing body shall exercise all the rights and be subject to all the duties of an owner of the area, and shall have power to provide for the payment of all special assessments and other charges imposed upon the area with respect to the system by the appropriation of money, the collection of service charges, or the levy of taxes, which shall be deemed special levies within the meaning of Minnesota Statutes, Section 275.50, Subdivision 5, and shall be subject to no limitation of rate or amount.

Sec. 3. **DEFINITIONS.** Subdivision 1. For the purposes of sections 3 to 19 the terms defined in this section have the meanings given them.

- Subd. 2. "Moose Lake and Windemere area sanitary sewer district" and "district" mean the area over which the sanitary sewer board has jurisdiction which shall include all of the town of Moose Lake in Carlton county and the town of Windemere in Pine county.
- Subd. 3. "Sanitary sewer board" or "board" means the sanitary sewer board established for the Moose Lake and Windemere area sanitary sewer district as provided in section 2.
- Subd. 4. "Person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, cooperative or other organization or entity, public or private.
- Subd. 5. "Local government unit" or "government unit" means the town of Moose Lake and the town of Windemere and any municipalities subsequently annexed to the district.
- Subd. 6. "Acquisition" and "betterment" shall have the meanings given to them in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475.
- Subd. 7. "Agency" means the Minnesota pollution control agency created and established by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 116.
- Subd. 8. "Sewage" means all liquid or water-carried waste products from whatever sources derived, together with such ground water infiltration and surface water as may be present.
- Subd. 9. "Pollution of water" and "sewer system" shall have the meanings given them in Minnesota Statutes, Section 115.01.
- Subd. 10. "Treatment works" and "disposal system" shall have the meanings given them in Minnesota Statutes, Section 115.01.
- Subd. 11. "Interceptor" means any sewer and necessary appurtenances thereto, including but not limited to, mains, pumping stations, and sewage flow regulating and measuring stations, which is designed for or used to conduct sewage originating in more than one local government unit, or which is designed or used to conduct all or, substantially all the sewage originating in a single local government unit from a point of collection in that unit to an interceptor or treatment works outside that unit, or which is determined by the board to be a major collector of sewage used or designed to serve a substantial area in the district.
- Subd. 12. "District disposal system" means any and all of the interceptors or treatment works owned, constructed or operated by the board unless designated by the board as local sanitary sewer facilities; and includes any water system or refuse disposal system facilities in the town of Moose Lake owned, constructed or operated by the board.
  - Subd. 13. "Municipality" means any city or town.
- Subd. 14. "Total costs of acquisition and betterment" and "costs or acquisition and betterment" mean all acquisition and betterment expenses which are permitted to be financed out

of band proceeds issued in accordance with section 13, whether or not the expenses are in fact financed out of the bond proceeds.

- Subd. 15. "Current costs of acquisition, betterment and debt service" means interest and principal estimated to be due during the budget year on bonds issued to finance said acquisition and betterment and all other costs of acquisition and betterment estimated to be paid during the year from funds other than bond proceeds and federal or state grants.
- Sec. 4. **SANITARY SEWER BOARD.** Subdivision 1. **ESTABLISHMENT.** A sewer district is established for the towns of Moose Lake in Carlton county and Windemere in Pine county, to be known as the Moose Lake and Windemere area sanitary sewer district. The sewer district shall be under the control and management of a sanitary sewer board. The board is established as a public corporation and political subdivision of the state with perpetual succession and all the rights, powers, privileges, immunities, and duties which may be validly granted to or imposed upon a municipal corporation, as provided in this act.
- Subd. 2. **MEMBERS AND SELECTION.** The board shall be composed of two members appointed by the Moose Lake town board, two members appointed by the Windemere town board, two members appointed by the governing body of each municipality subsequently annexed to the district, and one member who shall reside in Moose Lake or Windemere, appointed by a joint meeting of the town boards and other governing bodies of the municipalities in the district. Each member shall have one vote on matters coming before the board.
- Subd. 3. **TIME LIMITS FOR SELECTION.** The board members shall be selected as provided in subdivision 2 within 60 days after this act becomes effective. The successor to each board member shall be selected at any time within 60 days before the expiration of his term in the same manner as his predecessor was selected. Any vacancy on the board shall be filled within 60 days after it occurs.
- Subd. 4. **VACANCIES.** If the office of any board member becomes vacant, the vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired term in like manner as provided for selection of the member who vacated the office. The office shall be deemed vacant under the conditions specified in Minnesota Statutes, Section 351.02.
- Subd. 5. **TERMS OF OFFICE.** The term of each of the first board members shall expire on January 1 in a calendar year to be determined in accordance with subdivision 2 by the governing body selecting the member, provided that the term shall not expire any later than January 1, 1978. Succeeding terms of all board members shall be for one, two, three or four years to be determined in accordance with subdivision 2, except that each member shall serve until his successor has been duly selected and qualified.
- Subd. 6. **REMOVAL**. A board member may be removed by the unanimous vote of the governing body appointing him, with or without cause, or by the governor for malfeasance or nonfeasance in the performance of his official duties as provided by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 351.03 and 351.04.

- Subd. 7. **QUALIFICATIONS.** Each board member shall be a resident of the district and may but need not be an elected public official.
- Subd. 8. CERTIFICATES OF SELECTION; OATH OF OFFICE. A certificate of selection of every board member selected under subdivision 2 stating the term for which he was selected, shall be made by the respective town clerks. The certificates, with the approval appended by other authority, if required, shall be filed with the secretary of state. Counterparts thereof shall be furnished to the board member and the secretary of the board. Each member shall qualify by taking and subscribing the oath of office prescribed by the Minnesota Constitution, Article 5, Section 8. The oath, duly certified by the official administering the same, shall be filed with the secretary of state and the secretary of the board.
- Subd. 9. **BOARD MEMBERS' COMPENSATION.** Each board member, except the chairman, shall be paid a per diem compensation of \$50 for meetings, not to exceed \$1,000 in any one year. The chairman shall be paid a per diem compensation of \$50 for meetings, not to exceed \$1,500 in any one year. In addition the chairman and other board members shall be compensated at the rate of \$50 per day for other services as are specifically authorized by the board, without regard to the above annual limitations. All members of the board shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as determined by the board.
- Sec. 5. GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION OF BOARD. Subdivision 1. ORGANIZATION; OFFICERS; MEETINGS; SEAL. After the selection and qualification of all board members, they shall meet to organize the board at the call of any two board members, upon seven days notice by registered mail to the remaining board members, at a time and place within the district specified in the notice. A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum at that meeting and all other meetings of the board, but a lesser number may meet and adjourn from time to time and compel the attendance of absent members. At the first meeting the board shall select its officers as hereinafter provided and conduct such other organizational business as may be necessary. Thereafter the board shall meet regularly at such time and place as the board shall by resolution designate. Special meetings may be held at any time upon call of the chairman or any two members, upon written notice sent by mail to each member at least three days prior to the meeting, or upon such other notice as the board by resolution may provide, or without notice if each member is present or files with the secretary a written consent to the meeting either before or after the meeting. Except as otherwise provided in this act, any action within the authority of the board may be taken by the affirmative vote of a majority of the board and may be taken by regular or adjourned regular meeting or at a duly held special meeting, but in any case only if a quorum is present. All meetings of the board shall be open to the public. The board may adopt a seal, which shall be officially and judicially noticed, to authenticate instruments executed by its authority, but omission of the seal shall not affect the validity of any instrument.
- Subd. 2. **CHAIRMAN.** The board shall elect a chairman from its membership. The term of the first chairman of the board shall expire on January 1, 1976, and the terms of successor chairmen shall expire on January 1 of each succeeding year. The chairman shall preside at all meetings of the board, if present, and shall perform all other duties and functions usually

incumbent upon such an officer, and all administrative functions assigned to him by the board. The board shall elect a vice chairman from its membership to act for the chairman during his temporary absence or disability.

- Subd. 3. **SECRETARY AND TREASURER.** The board shall select a person or persons who may but need not be a member or members of the board, to act as its secretary and treasurer. The secretary and treasurer shall hold office at the pleasure of the board, subject to the terms of any contract of employment which the board may enter into with the secretary or treasurer. The secretary shall record the minutes of all meetings of the board, and shall be custodian of all books and records of the board except such as the board shall entrust to the custody of a designated employee. The treasurer shall be the custodian of all moneys received by the board except such as the board shall entrust to the custody of a designated employee. The board may appoint a deputy to perform any and all functions of either the secretary or the treasurer. No secretary or treasurer who is not a member of the board or a deputy of either shall have any right to vote.
- Subd. 4. **EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.** The board may appoint an executive director who shall be selected solely upon the basis of his training, experience and other qualifications and who shall serve at the pleasure of the board and at a compensation to be determined by the board. The executive director need not be a resident of the district. He may also be selected by the board to serve as either secretary or treasurer, or both, of the board. As executive director, he shall attend all meetings of the board, but shall not vote, and shall have the following powers and duties:
- (a) He shall see that all resolutions, rules, regulations, or orders of the board are enforced.
- (b) He shall appoint and remove, upon the basis of merit and fitness, all subordinate officers and regular employees of the board except the secretary and the treasurer and their deputies.
- (c) He shall present to the board plans, studies and other reports prepared for board purposes and recommend to the board for adoption such measures as he deems necessary to enforce or carry out the powers and duties of the board, or the efficient administration of the affairs of the board.
- (d) He shall keep the board fully advised as to its financial condition, and he shall prepare and submit to the board, and to the governing bodies of the local government units, the board's annual budget and other financial information as the board may request.
- (e) He shall recommend to the board for adoption such rules and regulations as he deems necessary for the efficient operation of the district disposal system.
  - (f) He shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the board.

- Subd. 5. **PUBLIC EMPLOYEES.** The executive director and all persons employed by him shall be public employees, and shall have all the rights and duties conferred on public employees under Minnesota Statutes, Sections 179.61 to 179.76. The board may elect to have employees become members of either the public employees' retirement association or the Minnesota state retirement system. The compensation and conditions of employment of the employees shall not be governed by any rule applicable to state employees in the classified service nor to any of the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 15A, unless the board so provides.
- Subd. 6. **PROCEDURES.** The board shall adopt resolutions or bylaws establishing procedures for board action, personnel administration, keeping records, approving claims, authorizing or making disbursements, safekeeping funds, and audit of all financial operations of the board.
- Subd. 7. **SURETY BONDS AND INSURANCE.** The board may procure surety bonds for its officers and employees and in amounts as are deemed necessary to assure proper performance of their duties and proper accounting for funds in their custody. It may procure insurance against risks to property and liability of the board and its officers, agents, and employees for personal injuries or death and property damage and destruction and in amounts as may be deemed necessary or desirable, with the force and effect stated in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 466.
- Sec. 6. **GENERAL POWERS OF BOARD.** Subdivision 1. The board shall have all powers which may be necessary or convenient to discharge the duties imposed upon it by law. The powers shall include those herein specified, but the express grant or enumeration of powers shall not be deemed to limit the generality or scope of the grant of power contained in this subdivision.
  - Subd. 2. The board may sue or be sued.
- Subd. 3. The board may enter into any contract necessary or proper for the exercise of its powers or the accomplishment of its purposes.
- Subd. 4. The board may adopt rules and regulations relating to the board's responsibilities and may provide penalties for the violation thereof not exceeding the maximum which may be specified for a misdemeanor, and the cost of prosecution may be added to the penalties imposed. Any rule or regulation prescribing a penalty for violation shall be published at least once in a newspaper having general circulation in the district. The violations may be prosecuted before any court in the district having jurisdiction of misdemeanors, and every court having misdemeanor jurisdiction shall have jurisdiction of the violations. Any constable or other peace officer of any government unit in the district may make arrests for violations committed anywhere in the district in like manner and with like effect as for violations of city ordinances or for statutory misdemeanors. All fines collected in cases arising under this subdivision shall be deposited in the treasury of the board, or may be allocated between the board and the government unit in which such prosecution occurs on such basis as the board and the government unit agree.

Subd. 5. The board may accept gifts, apply for and accept grants or loans of money or other property from the United States, the state, or any person for any of its purposes, enter into any agreement required in connection herewith, and hold, use and dispose of such money or property in accordance with the terms of the gift, grant, loan or agreement relating thereto; and, with respect to any loans or grants of funds or real or personal property or other assistance from any state or federal government or any agency or instrumentality thereof, the board may contract to do and perform all acts and things required as a condition or consideration therefor pursuant to state or federal law or regulations, whether or not included among the powers expressly granted to the board in this act.

Subd. 6. The board may act under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59, or any other appropriate law providing for joint or cooperative action between governmental units.

Subd. 7. The board may conduct research studies and programs, collect and analyze data, prepare reports, maps, charts, and tables, and conduct all necessary hearings and investigations in connection with the design, construction and operation of the district disposal system.

Subd. 8. The board may employ on terms as it deems advisable, persons or firms performing engineering, legal or other services of a professional nature; require any employee to obtain and file with it an individual bond or fidelity insurance policy; and procure insurance in amounts as it deems necessary against liability of the board or its officers or both, for personal injury or death and property damage or destruction, with the force and effect stated in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 466, and against risks of damage to or destruction of any of its facilities, equipment, or other property as it deems necessary.

Subd. 9. The board may acquire by purchase, lease, condemnation, gift, or grant, any real or personal property including positive and negative easements and water and air rights, and it may construct, enlarge, improve, replace, repair, maintain, and operate any interceptor, treatment works, or water facility determined to be necessary or convenient for the collection and disposal of sewage in the district. Any local government unit and the commissioners of highways and natural resources are authorized to convey to or permit the use of any of the abovementioned facilities owned or controlled by it, by the board, subject to the rights of the holders of any bonds issued with respect thereto, with or without compensation, without an election or approval by any other government unit or agency. All powers conferred by this subdivision may be exercised both within or without the district as may be necessary for the exercise by the board of its powers or the accomplishment of its purposes. The board may hold, lease, convey or otherwise dispose of the abovementioned property for its purposes upon terms and in a manner as it deems advisable. Unless otherwise provided, the right to acquire lands and property rights by condemnation shall be exercised in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Sections 317.01 to 117.202, and shall apply to any property or interest therein owned by any local government unit; provided, that no property devoted to an actual public use at the time, or held to be devoted to such use within a reasonable time, shall be so acquired unless a court of competent jurisdiction shall determine that the use proposed by the board is paramount to the existing use. Except in case of property in actual public use, the board may take possession of any property on which condemnation proceedings have been commenced at any time after the issuance of a court order appointing commissioners for its condemnation.

Subd. 10. The board may construct or maintain its systems or facilities in, along, on, under, over, or through public waters, streets, bridges, viaducts, and other public rights of way without first obtaining a franchise from a county or municipality having jurisdiction over them; but the facilities shall be constructed and maintained in accordance with the ordinances and resolutions of the county or municipality relating to construction, installation, and maintenance of similar facilities on public properties and shall not unnecessarily obstruct the public use of such rights of way.

Subd. 11. The board may sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any real or personal property acquired by it which is no longer required for accomplishment of its purposes. The property may be sold in the manner provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 453.196, insofar as practical. The board may give notice of sale as it shall deem appropriate. When the board determines that any property or any part of the district disposal system which has been acquired from a local government unit without compensation is no longer required but is required as a local facility by the government unit from which it was acquired, the board may by resolution transfer it to such government unit.

Subd. 12. The board may contract with the United States or any agency thereof, any state or agency thereof, or any regional public planning body in the state with jurisdiction over any part of the district, or any other municipal or public corporation, or governmental subdivision or agency or political subdivision in any state, for the Joint use of any facility owned by the board or such entity, for the operation by such entity of any system or facility of the board, or for the performance on the board's behalf of any service, including but not limited to planning, on terms as may be agreed upon by the contracting parties. Unless designated by the board as a local sanitary sewer facility, any treatment works or interceptor jointly used, or operated on behalf of the board, as provided in this subdivision, shall be deemed to be operated by the board for purposes of including said facilities in the district disposal system.

Sec. 7. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. Subdivision 1. BOARD PLAN AND PROGRAM. The board shall adopt a comprehensive plan for the collection, treatment and disposal of sewage in the district for a designated period the board deems proper and reasonable. The board shall prepare and adopt subsequent comprehensive plans for the collection, treatment and disposal of sewage in the district for each succeeding designated period as the board deems proper and reasonable. The first plan, as modified by the board, and any subsequent plan shall take into account the preservation and best and most economic use of water and other natural resources in the area; the preservation, use and potential for use of lands adjoining waters of the state to be used for the disposal of sewage; and the impact such a disposal system will have on present and future land use in the area affected thereby. The plans shall include the general location of needed interceptors and treatment works, a description of the area that is to be served by the various interceptors and treatment works, a long range capital improvements program and any other details as the board shall deem appropriate. In developing the plans, the board shall consult with persons designated for the purpose by governing bodies of any government unit within the district to represent the entities and shall consider the data, resources and input offered

to the board by the entities and any planning agency acting on behalf of one or more of the entities. Each plan, when adopted, shall be followed in the district and may be revised as often as the board deems necessary.

- Subd. 2. **COMPREHENSIVE PLANS; HEARING.** Before adopting any subsequent comprehensive plan the board shall hold a public hearing on the proposed plan at such time and place in the district as it shall determine. The hearing may be continued from time to time. Not less than 45 days before the hearing, the board shall publish notice thereof in a newspaper or newspapers having general circulation in the district, stating the date, time and place of the hearing, and the place where the proposed plan may be examined by any interested person. At the hearing, all interested persons shall be permitted to present their views on the plan.
- Subd. 3. GOVERNMENT UNIT PLANS AND PROGRAMS; COORDINATION WITH BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIES. Once the board's plan is adopted, no construction project involving the construction of new sewers or other disposal facilities shall be undertaken by the local government unit unless its governing body shall first find the project to be in accordance with the government unit's comprehensive plan and program as approved by the board. Prior to approval by the board of the comprehensive plan and program of any local government unit in the district, no sanitary sewer construction project shall be undertaken by the government unit unless approval of the project is first secured from the board as to those features of the project affecting the board's responsibilities as determined by the board.
- Sec. 8. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL; POWERS. Subdivision 1. POWERS. In addition to all other powers conferred upon the board in this act, it shall have the powers specified in this section.
- Subd. 2. **DISCHARGE OF TREATED SEWAGE.** The board shall have the right to discharge the effluent from any treatment works operated by it into any waters of the state, subject to approval of the agency if required and in accordance with any effluent or water quality standards lawfully adopted by the agency, any interstate agency or any federal agency having jurisdiction.
- Subd. 3. UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT SYSTEM. The board may require any person or local government unit to provide for the discharge of any sewage, directly or indirectly, into the district disposal system, or to connect any disposal system or a part thereof with the district disposal system wherever reasonable opportunity therefore is provided; may regulate the manner in which such connections are made; may require any person or local government unit discharging sewage into the disposal system to provide preliminary treatment therefor; may prohibit the discharge into the district disposal system of any substance which it determines will or may be harmful to the system or any persons operating it; and may require any local government unit to discontinue the acquisition, betterment, or operation of any facility for the unit's disposal system wherever and so far as adequate service is or will be provided by the district disposal system.
- Subd. 4. SYSTEM OF COST RECOVERY TO COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE REGULATIONS. Any charges, connection fees or other cost recovery techniques imposed on

persons discharging sewage directly or indirectly into the district disposal system shall comply with applicable state and federal law, including but not limited to state and federal regulations governing grant applications.

- Subd. 5. In addition to all other powers conferred upon the board in this section, it shall have all the powers of a sanitary district as provided in Minnesota Statutes, Section 115.26. The provisions of Laws 1974, Chapter 400, Section 12, shall apply and be followed with respect to any projects initiated pursuant to the authority granted in this subdivision.
- Sec. 9. **BUDGET.** The board shall prepare and adopt, on or before October 1, 1974 and on or before October 1, 1975. and each year thereafter, a budget showing for the following calendar year or other fiscal year determined by the board, sometimes referred to in this act as the budget year, estimated receipts of money from all sources, including but not limited to payments by each local government unit, federal or state grants, taxes on property, and funds on hand at the beginning of the year, and estimated expenditures for:
  - (1) costs of operation, administration and maintenance of the district disposal system;
  - (2) cost of acquisition and betterment of the district disposal system; and
- (3) debt service, including principal and interest, on general obligation bonds and certificates issued pursuant to section 13, and any money judgments entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. Expenditures within these general categories, and any other categories as the board may from time to time determine, shall be itemized in detail as the board shall prescribe. The board and its officers, agents and employees shall not spend money for any purpose other than debt service without having set forth the expense in the budget nor in excess of the amount set forth in the budget therefor, and no obligation to make an expenditure of the abovementioned type shall be enforceable except as the obligation of the person or persons incurring it; provided that the board may amend the budget at any time by transferring from one purpose to another any sums except money for debt service and bond proceeds or by increasing expenditures in any amount by which cash receipts during the budget year actually exceed the total amounts designated in the original budget. The creation of any obligation pursuant to section 13 or the receipt of any federal or state grant is a sufficient budget designation of the proceeds for the purpose for which it is authorized, and of the tax or other revenue pledged to pay the obligation and interest on it, whether or not specifically included in any annual budget.
- Sec. 10. ALLOCATION OF COST. Subdivision 1. DEFINITION OF CURRENT COSTS. The estimated cost of administration, operation, maintenance and debt service of the district disposal system to be paid by the board in each fiscal year and the estimated costs of acquisition and betterment of the system which are to be paid during the year from funds other than state or federal grants and bond proceeds and all other previously unallocated payments made by the board pursuant to this act to be allocated in the fiscal year are referred to as current costs and shall be allocated by the board as hereinafter provided in the budget for such year.
- Subd. 2. METHOD OF ALLOCATION OF CURRENT COSTS. All current costs shall be allocated in the district on an equitable basis as the board may from time to time

determine by resolution to be in the best interests of the district. The adoption or revision of any method of allocation used by the board shall be by the affirmative vote of at least two thirds the members of the board.

- Sec. 11. **TAX LEVIES.** To accomplish any duty imposed on it the board may, in addition to the powers granted in this act and in any other law or charter, exercise the powers granted any municipality by Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 117, 412, 429, 475, Sections 115.46, 444.075 and 471.59 with respect to the area in the district. In addition, the board may levy taxes upon all taxable property in the district for all or a part of the amount payable to the board, pursuant to section 10, to be assessed and extended as a tax upon such taxable property by the county auditor for the next calendar year, free from any limitation of rate or amount imposed by law or charter. The tax shall be collected and remitted in the same manner as other general taxes.
- Sec. 12. PUBLIC HEARING AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. Subdivision 1. PUBLIC HEARING REQUIREMENT ON SPECIFIC PROJECT. Before the board orders any project involving the acquisition or betterment of any interceptor or treatment works, all or a part of the cost of which will be allocated pursuant to section 10, as current costs, the board shall hold a public hearing on the proposed project following two publications in a newspaper or newspapers having general circulation in the district, stating the time and place of the hearing, the general nature and location of the project, the estimated total cost of acquisition and betterment, that portion of costs estimated to be paid out of federal and state grants, and that portion of costs estimated to be allocated. The two publications shall be a week apart and the hearing shall be at least three days after the last publication. Not less than 45 days before the hearing, notice thereof shall also be mailed to each clerk of all local government units in the district, but failure to give mailed notice or any defects in the notice shall not invalidate the proceedings. The project may include all or part of one or more interceptors or treatment works. No hearing shall be held on any project unless the project is within the area covered by the comprehensive plan adopted by the board pursuant to section 7 except that the hearing may be held simultaneously with a hearing on a comprehensive plan. A hearing is not required with respect to a project, no part of the costs of which are to be allocated as the current costs of acquisition, betterment and debt service.
- Subd. 2. NOTICE TO BENEFITTED PROPERTY OWNERS. If the board proposes to assess against benefitted property within the district all or any part of the allocable costs of the project as provided in subdivision 5, the board shall, not less than ten days prior to the hearing provided for in subdivision 1 cause mailed notice thereof to be given to the owner of each parcel within the area proposed to be specially assessed and shall also give one week's published notice of the hearing, The notice of hearing shall contain the same information provided in the notice published by the board pursuant to subdivision 1, and in addition, a description of the area proposed to be assessed. For the purpose of giving mailed notice, owners shall be those shown to be on the records of the county auditor or, in any county where tax statements are mailed by the county treasurer, on the records of the county treasurer; but other appropriate records may be used for this purpose. However, as to properties which are tax exempt or subject to taxation on a gross earnings basis and are not listed on the records of the county auditor or the county treasurer, the owners thereof shall be ascertained by any practicable means and mailed notice

shall be given them as herein provided. Failure to give mailed notice or any defects in the notice shall not invalidate the proceedings of the board.

- Subd. 3. **BOARD PROCEEDINGS PERTAINING TO HEARING.** Prior to adoption of the resolution calling for a hearing brought pursuant to this section the board shall secure from the district engineer or some other competent person of the board's selection a report advising it in a preliminary way as to whether the proposed project is feasible and as to whether it should best be made as proposed or in connection with some other project and the estimated costs of the project as recommended; but no error or omission in the report shall invalidate the proceeding. The board may also take such other steps prior to the hearing, as will in its judgment provide helpful information in determining the desirability and feasibility of the project, including but not limited to preparation of plans and specifications and advertisement for bids thereon. The hearing may be adjourned from time to time and a resolution ordering the project may be adopted at any time within six months after the date of hearing. In ordering the project the board may reduce but not increase the extent of the project as stated in the notice of hearing and shall find that the project as ordered is in accordance with the comprehensive plan and program adopted by the board pursuant to section 7.
- Subd. 4. **EMERGENCY ACTION.** If the board by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of not less than two thirds of its members determines that an emergency exists requiring the immediate purchase of materials or supplies or the making of emergency repairs, it may order the purchase of such supplies and materials and the making of such repairs prior to any hearing required under this section, provided that the board shall set as early a date as practicable for such hearing at the time it declares such emergency. All other provisions of this section shall be followed in giving notice of and conducting such hearing. Nothing herein shall be construed as preventing the board or its agents from purchasing maintenance supplies or incurring maintenance costs without regard to the requirements of this section.
- Subd. 5. **POWER OF THE BOARD TO SPECIALLY ASSESS.** The board may specially assess all or any part of the costs of acquisition and betterment as herein provided, of any project ordered pursuant to this section. The special assessments shall be levied in accordance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 429.051 to 429.081; except as otherwise provided in this subdivision. No other provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429 shall apply. For purposes of levying the special assessments, the hearing on the project required in subdivision 1 shall serve as the hearing on the making of the original improvement provided for by Minnesota Statutes, Section 429.051. The area assessed may be less than but may not exceed the area proposed to be assessed as stated in the notice of hearing on the project provided for in subdivision 2.
- Sec. 13. BONDS, CERTIFICATES AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS. Subdivision 1. BUDGET ANTICIPATION CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS. At any time after adoption of its annual budget and in anticipation of the collection of tax and other revenues estimated and set forth by the board in the budget, except in the case of:
  - (a) Deficiency taxes levied pursuant to this subdivision, and

(b) Taxes levied for the payment of certificates issued pursuant to subdivision 2, the board may, by resolution, authorize the issuance, negotiation and sale, in accordance with subdivision 4 in the form and manner and upon terms as it may determine; of its negotiable general obligation certificates of indebtedness in aggregate principal amounts not exceeding 50 percent of the total amount of tax collections and other revenues and maturing not later than three months after the close of the budget year in which issued. The proceeds of the sale of the certificates shall be used solely for the purposes for which the tax collections and other revenues are to be expended pursuant to the budget.

All the tax collections and other revenues included in the budget for the budget year, after the expenditure of the tax collections and other revenues in accordance with the budget, shall be irrevocably pledged and appropriated to a special fund to pay the principal and interest on the certificates when due. If for any reason the tax collections and other revenues are insufficient to pay the certificates and interest when due, the board shall levy a tax in the amount of the deficiency on all taxable property in the district and shall appropriate this amount when received to the special fund.

Subd. 2. EMERGENCY CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS. If in any budget year the receipts of tax and other revenues should for some unforeseen cause become insufficient to pay the board's current expenses, or if any calamity or other public emergency should subject it to the necessity of making extraordinary expenditures, the board may by resolution authorize the issuance, negotiation, and sale, in accordance with subdivision 4 in the form and manner and upon such terms and conditions as it may determine, of its negotiable general obligation certificates of indebtedness in an amount sufficient to meet the deficiency, and the board shall forthwith levy on all taxable property in the district a tax sufficient to pay the certificates and interest thereon and shall appropriate all collections of the tax to a special fund created for the payment of the certificates and the interest thereon. Certificates issued under this subdivision shall mature not later than April 1 in the year following the year in which such tax is collectible.

Subd. 3. GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS. The board may by resolution authorize the issuance of general obligation bonds for the acquisition or betterment of any part of the district disposal system, including but without limitation the payment of interest during construction and for a reasonable period thereafter, or for the refunding of outstanding bonds, certificates of indebtedness, or judgments. The board shall pledge its full faith and credit and taxing power for the payment of the bonds and shall provide for the issuance and sale and for the security of the bonds in the manner provided in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, and shall have the same powers and duties as a municipality issuing bonds under that law, except that no election shall be required and the debt limitations of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, shall not apply to the bonds. The board may also pledge for the payment of such bonds and deduct from the amount of any tax levy required under Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.61, Subdivision 1, and any revenues receivable under any state and federal grants anticipated by the board and may covenant to refund such bonds if and when and to the extent that for any reason such revenues, together with other funds properly available and appropriated for such purpose, are not sufficient to pay all principal and interest due or about to become due thereon, provided that such revenues have not been anticipated by the issuance of certificates under subdivision 1.

- Subd. 4. MANNER OF SALE AND ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATES. Certificates issued under subdivisions 1 and 2 may be issued and sold by negotiation, without public sale, and may be sold at a price equal to the percentage of the par value thereof, plus accrued interest, and bearing interest at a rate as may be determined by the board. No election shall be required to authorize the issuance of the certificates. The certificates shall bear the same rate of interest after maturity as before and the full faith and credit and taxing power of the board shall be pledged to the payment of such certificates.
- Sec. 14. **DEPOSITORIES.** The board shall from time to time designate one or more national or state banks, or trust companies authorized to do a banking business, as official depositories for money of the board, and thereupon shall require the treasurer to deposit all or a part of the money in such institutions. The designation shall be in writing and shall set forth all the terms and conditions upon which the deposits are made, and shall be signed by the chairman and treasurer, and made a part of the minutes of the board. A bank or trust company so designated shall qualify as a depository by furnishing a corporate surety bond or collateral in the amounts required by Minnesota Statutes, Section 118.01. However, no bond or collateral shall be required to secure any deposit insofar as it is insured under federal law.
- Sec. 15. MONEYS, ACCOUNTS AND INVESTMENTS. Subdivision 1. RECEIPT AND APPLICATION. All money received by the board shall be deposited or invested by the treasurer and disposed of as the board may direct in accordance with its budget; provided that any moneys that have been pledged or dedicated by the board to the payment of obligations or interest thereon or expenses incident thereto, or for any other specific purpose authorized by law, shall be paid by the treasurer into the fund to which they have been pledged.
- Subd. 2. **FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS.** The board's treasurer shall establish funds and accounts as may be necessary or convenient to handle the receipts and disbursements of the board in an orderly fashion.
- Subd. 3. **DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT.** The money on hand in said funds and accounts may be deposited in the official depositories of the board or invested as hereinafter provided. The amount thereof not currently needed or required by law to be kept in cash on deposit may be invested in obligations authorized for the investment of municipal sinking funds by Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.66. Such moneys may also be held under certificates of deposit issued by any official depository of the board.
- Subd. 4. **BOND PROCEEDS.** The use of proceeds of all bonds issued by the board for the acquisition and betterment of the district disposal system, and the use, other than investment, of all money on hand in any sinking fund or funds of the board, shall be governed by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, the provisions of this act, and the provisions of resolutions authorizing the issuance of such bonds. The bond proceeds when received shall be transferred to the treasurer of the board for safekeeping, investment and payment of the costs for which they were issued.

- Subd. 5. AUDIT. The board shall provide for and pay the cost of an independent annual audit of its official books and records by the state auditor or a public accountant authorized to perform such a function under Minnesota Statutes, Section 214.33.
- 16. SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES OUTSIDE THE JURISDICTION OF THE BOARD. The board may contract with the United States or any agency thereof, any state or any agency thereof, or any municipal or public corporation, governmental subdivision or agency or political subdivision in any state, outside the jurisdiction of the board, for furnishing to the abovementioned entities services, including but not limited to planning for and the acquisition, betterment, operation, administration and maintenance of any or all interceptors, treatment works and local sanitary sewer facilities, provided that the board may further include as one of the terms of the contract that the entity also pay to the board an amount as may be agreed upon as a reasonable, estimate of the proportionate share properly allocable to the entity of costs of acquisition, betterment and debt service previously allocated in the district. When payments are made by entities to the board, they shall be applied in reduction of the total amount of costs thereafter allocated in the district, on an equitable basis as the board deems to be in the best interests of the district, applying so far as practicable and appropriate the criteria set forth in section 10, subdivision 2. Any municipality in the state of Minnesota may enter into such contract and perform all acts and things required as a condition or consideration therefor consistent with the purposes of this act, whether or not included among the powers otherwise granted to such municipality by law or charter.
- Sec. 17. CONTRACTS FOR CONSTRUCTION, MATERIALS, SUPPLIES, AND EQUIPMENT. Subdivision 1. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS. When the board orders a project involving the acquisition or betterment of a part of the district disposal system, it shall cause plans and specifications of the project to be made, or if previously made, to be modified, if necessary, and to be approved by the agency if required, and after any required approval by the agency, one or more contracts for work and materials called for by the plans and specification may be awarded as provided in this section.
- Subd. 2. CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF \$5,000. No contract for any construction work, or for the purchase of materials, supplies, or equipment, estimated to cost more than \$5,000 shall be made by the board without publishing once in a newspaper having general circulation in the district and once in a trade paper or legal newspaper published in any city of the first class, not less than 14 days before the last day for submission of bids, notice that bids or proposals will be received. The notice shall state the nature of the work or purchase, the terms and conditions upon which the contract is to be awarded, and the time and place where such bids will be received, opened, and read publicly. After the bids have been duly received, opened, read publicly, and recorded, the board shall within a reasonable time award such contract to the lowest responsible bidder or it may reject all bids and readvertise. Each contract shall be duly executed in writing and the party to whom the contract is awarded shall give sufficient bond or security to the board for the faithful performance of the contract as required by law. If the board by an affirmative vote of not less than two thirds of its members declares that an emergency exists requiring the immediate purchase pf materials or supplies or in making emergency repairs, at a cast estimated to be in excess of \$5,000 it shall not be necessary, to advertise for bids.

- Subd. 3. CONTRACTS OR PURCHASES FOR \$5,000 OR LESS. The board may, without advertising for bids, enter into any contract or purchase any materials, supplies or equipment of the type referred to in subdivision 2 the cost of which is estimated to be \$5,000 or less, or it may in the alternative authorize the executive director to enter into a contract on behalf of the board for such work or to make such purchases without prior approval of the board and without advertising for bids.
- Subd. 4. UNIFORM MUNICIPAL CONTRACTING LAW. Except as otherwise provided in this section, Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.345 shall apply.
- Sec. 18. PROPERTY EXEMPT FROM TAXATION. Any properties, real or personal, owned, leased, controlled, used, or occupied by the sanitary sewer board for any purpose under this act are declared to be acquired, owned, leased, controlled, used and occupied for public, governmental, and municipal purposes, and shall be exempt from taxation on by the state or any political subdivision of the state, provided that the properties shall be subject to special assessments levied by a political subdivision for a local improvement in amounts proportionate to and not exceeding the special benefit received by the properties from the improvement. No possible use of any properties in any manner different from their use as part of a disposal system at the time shall be considered in determining the special benefit received by the properties. All assessments shall be subject to final approval by the board, whose determination of the benefits shall be conclusive upon the political subdivision levying the assessment. All bonds, certificates of indebtedness or other obligations of the board, and the interest thereon, shall be exempt from taxation by the state or any political subdivision of the state.
- Sec. 19. **RELATION TO EXISTING LAWS.** The provisions of this act shall be given full effect notwithstanding the provisions of any law or charter inconsistent therewith. The powers conferred on the board under this act shall in no way diminish or supersede the powers conferred on the agency by Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 115 and 116.
- Sec. 20. Subdivision 1. This act is effective as to the county of Chisago when approved by the county board and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.
- Subd. 2. This act is effective as to the county of Pine when approved by the county board and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.
- Subd. 3. This act is effective as to the towns of Moose Lake and Windemere when approved by the town boards of each town and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.
- Sec 21. ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY. Any municipality upon resolution adopted by a four-fifths vote of its governing body may petition the board for annexation to the district of the area then comprising the municipality, or any part thereof and, if accepted by the board, the area shall be deemed annexed to the district and subject to the jurisdiction of the board under the terms and provisions of this act. The territory so annexed shall be subject to taxation and assessment pursuant to the provisions of this act and shall be subject to taxation by the board like other property in the district for the payment of principal and interest thereafter becoming due on

general obligations of the board, whether authorized or issued before or after the annexation. The board may in its discretion condition approval of the annexation upon the contribution, by or on behalf of the municipality petitioning for annexation, to the board of an amount as being agreed upon as being a reasonable estimate of the proportionate share, properly allocable to the municipality, of costs of acquisition, betterment and debt service previously allocated to local government units in the district, on terms as may be agreed upon. For the purpose of paying this contribution, the municipality may levy taxes upon all taxable property in that part of the government unit located in the district for all or a part of the amounts payable to the board, to be assessed and extended as a tax upon the taxable property by the county auditor for the next calendar year, free from any limitation of rate or amount imposed by law or charter. The tax shall be collected and remitted in the same manner as other general taxes of the government unit. When the contributions are made by the municipality to the board, they shall be applied in reduction of the total amount of costs thereafter allocated to each local government unit in the district, on an equitable basis which the board deems in the best interest of the district, applying so far as practicable and appropriate the criteria set forth in section 10, subdivision 2. Upon annexation of the territory, the secretary of the board shall certify to the auditor and treasurer of the county in which the municipality is located the fact of annexation and a legal description of the territory annexed.

Approved April 9, 1974. Amended April 13, 1976, April 7, 1980, March 22, 1982, June 11, 1987 and May 11, 1999.